
POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING
AGENDA

 
Date: September 14, 2021
Time: 7:00 pm
Location: Catholic Education Centre - Board Room

802 Drury Lane
Burlington, Ontario

Pages

1. Call to Order

1.1. Opening Prayer (B. Agnew)

2. Approvals

2.1. Approval of Agenda

2.2. Approval of Minutes - June 8, 2021 1 - 9

3. Declarations of Conflict of Interest

4. Action Items

4.1. Policy I-19 Occupational Health and Safety (E. Bakaic) 10 - 12

4.2. Policy III-15 Workplace Violence (E. Bakaic) 13 - 18

4.3. Policy III-16 Workplace Discrimination and Harassment (E. Bakaic) 19 - 25

4.4. Policy I-06 Delegation to the Board (B. Agnew) 26 - 30

4.5. Policy I-46 Correspondence to the Board (B. Agnew) 31 - 43

4.6. Policy II-09 Opening and Closing Exercises (N. Guzzo) 44 - 46

4.7. Rescind Policy IV-07 Alternative Arrangements for School Facilities  ( A. Lofts) 47 - 49

4.8. Rescind Policy IV-08 School Sites and Operating Budget (A. Lofts) 50 - 53

4.9. HCDSB Procedural By-Laws (P. Murphy) 54 - 74

5. Discussion Items

6. Information Items

6.1. Administrative Procedure VI-04 Complaints Resolution Process: Workplace
Discrimination/ Harassment/Violence (E. Bakaic)

75 - 78

6.2. 2021-2022 Policy Committee Work Plan (E. Bakaic) 79 - 80

6.3. 2021-2022 Policy Working Group Committee Members (E. Bakaic) 81 - 81



6.4. Upcoming Agenda Items (October 12, 2021)

6.4.1. Policy II-11 Daily Teacher Plans (J. Crowell, E. Bakaic)

6.4.2. Policy II-07 The School Day Teaching Day Elementary & Secondary (J.
Crowell, E. Bakaic)

6.4.3. Policy I-24 Fraud Management (A. Lofts)

6.4.4. Information Items

6.4.4.1. Administrative Procedure VI-54 Equity and Inclusive Education
(S. Jayaraman)

6.4.4.2. Administrative Procedure VI-39 Inclement Weather Safety (E.
Bakaic)

6.4.4.3. Administrative Procedure VI-24 Fraud Management (A. Lofts)

6.4.4.4. Administrative Procedure VI-60 Student Groups in Catholic
Schools (E. Bakaic)

7. Miscellaneous Information

8. In Camera

9. Motion to Excuse Absent Committee Members

10. Motion to Adjourn/ Closing Prayer (P. DeRosa)



 

 

POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
 

Date: 
Time: 
Location: 

June 08, 2021 
7:00 pm 
Catholic Education Centre - Board Room 
802 Drury Lane 
Burlington, Ontario 

 
Trustee Present: B. Agnew (Electronically) 

P. DeRosa (Electronically) 
M. Duarte (Electronically) 
N. Guzzo (Electronically)  
V. Iantomasi (Electronically) 
H. Karabela (Electronically)  
P. Murphy (Electronically) 
T. O’Brien (Electronically) 
J. O’Hearn-Czarnota (Electronically)  

Student Trustees Present: N. Gubert (Electronically) 
K. Kelly (Electronically) 

Staff Present:  E. Bakaic, Superintendent of Education, School Services (Electronically) 
S. Balogh (Superintendent of Education, Special Education (Electronically) 
A. Cordeiro, Superintendent of Education, School Services (Electronically) 
P. Daly, Director of Education (Electronically) 
N. Dinolfo, Superintendent of Education, School Services (Electronically) 
S. Jayaraman, Senior Manager, Human Rights and Equity (Electronically) 
A. Lofts, Superintendent of Education (Electronically) 
C. McGillicuddy Superintendent of Education (Electronically) 
L. Naar, Superintendent of Education School Services (Electronically) 
J. O’Hara, Executive Officer, Human Resources Services (Electronically) 
A. Swinden, Manager, Strategic Communications (Electronically) 
B. Vidovic, Senior. Manager, Planning & Assessment Services (Electronically) 

Recording Secretary: M. Zammit (Electronically) 
 
1. Call to Order 

1.1 Opening Prayer (P. Murphy) 
The meeting opened at 7:00 p.m. with a prayer led by Trustee Murphy.   

 
2. Approvals 

2.1 Approval of Agenda  
  P# 51/21 

Moved by: B. Agnew 
Seconded by: M. Duarte 
That, the agenda be approved as presented. 

 

The Chair overruled a point of order regarding information not received for agenda items 4.4 
& 4.5 at the time of the Friday, June 4th published agenda package. 

P#52/21 

 

1



Minutes of the June 08, 2021 Policy Committee Meeting 2 

 

Moved by: H. Karabela 
RESOLVED, that the ruling of the Chair be appealed. 
 
The Chair called for a vote. P#52/21 the appeal was DEFEATED. 

In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
P. DeRosa B. Agnew   
V. Iantomasi M. Duarte   
H. Karabela P. Murphy   
T. O’Brien J. O’Hearn-Czarnota   
N. Gubert (non-
binding) 

K. Kelly (non-
binding) 

  

 N. Guzzo   
  

 The Chair called for a vote. P#51/21 CARRIED 
 

In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
B. Agnew P. DeRosa   
M. Duarte V. Iantomasi   
N. Guzzo H. Karabela   
P. Murphy T. O’Brien   
J. O’Hearn-Czarnota N. Gubert (non-

binding) 
  

K. Kelly (non-binding)    
   

2.2 Approval of Minutes (May 11, 2021) 
P#53/21 
Moved by: H. Karabela 
Seconded by: T. O’Brien 
That, the minutes of the May 11, 2021 Policy Committee be approved. 
    
The Chair called for a vote.  P#53/21 CARRIED 
 

In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
B. Agnew P. DeRosa   
M. Duarte V. Iantomasi   
H. Karabela    
P. Murphy    
T. O’Brien    
J. O’Hearn-Czarnota    
K. Kelly (non-binding)    
N. Gubert (non-
binding) 

   

 
3. Declarations of Conflict of Interest 

 There were no Conflicts of Interest.  
 
4. Action Items 

4.1 Policy I-06 Delegation to the Board (B. Agnew)  
Following various discussions Trustees agreed to defer Policy I-06 Delegation to the Board to 
the September 2021 Policy Meeting to allow further review.  

2



Minutes of the June 08, 2021 Policy Committee Meeting 3 

 

 

Student Trustee N. Gubert disconnected from meeting.  
 
4.2 Policy I-11 International Student Admission Requirements (Fee Paying Students) (A. 

Lofts, A. Cordeiro) 
P#54/21 
Moved by:   
Seconded by:  
That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy I-11 International Student Admission 
Requirements (Fee Paying Students) be forwarded, to the June 15, 2021 Regular Board 
Meeting for approval. 

 
The Chair called for a vote.  Recommendation P#54/21 CARRIED 
 

In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
B. Agnew   N. Gubert (non-

binding) 
P. DeRosa    
M. Duarte    
N. Guzzo    
V. Iantomasi      
H. Karabela    
P. Murphy    
T. O’Brien    
J. O’Hearn-Czarnota    
K. Kelly (non-binding)    

 
 

4.3 Policy I- 23 Catholic School Councils and Catholic Parent Involvement Committee (N. 
Dinolfo)  
P#55/21 
Moved by:  B. Agnew  
Seconded by: P. Murphy 
That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy I-23 Catholic School Councils and 
Catholic Parent Involvement Committee Requirements be forwarded, to the June 15, 2021 
Regular Board Meeting for approval. 
 
P#55/21 (AMENDMENT) 
Moved by: H. Karabela 
Seconded by: M. Duarte 
That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy I-23 Catholic School Councils and 
Catholic Parent Involvement Committee Requirements be forwarded, to the June 15, 2021 
Regular Board Meeting for approval and that under requirements the following be added “All 
members of the Catholic School Council or CPIC, must be Catholic with a provision for non-
Catholic membership of up to 30%. For Councils with less than 8 members a provision may 
be made for a maximum of two non-Catholic members”.  
 
The Chair called for a vote.  Recommendation P#55/21 (AMENDMENT) CARRIED 
 

In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 

3



Minutes of the June 08, 2021 Policy Committee Meeting 4 

 

P. DeRosa B. Agnew  N. Gubert (non-
binding) 

M. Duarte N. Guzzo   
V. Iantomasi   K. Kelly (non-

binding) 
  

H. Karabela P. Murphy   
T. O’Brien J. O’Hearn-Czarnota   

 
The Chair called for a vote.  Recommendation P#55/21 (AS AMENDED) CARRIED 
   

In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
P. DeRosa B. Agnew  N. Gubert (non-

binding) 
M. Duarte N. Guzzo   
V. Iantomasi   K. Kelly (non-

binding) 
  

H. Karabela P. Murphy   
T. O’Brien J. O’Hearn-Czarnota   

 
 

4.4 Policy I-26 Student Trustees on the Halton Catholic District School Board (N. Guzzo, K. 
Kelly) 
P#56/21 
Moved by: J. O’Hearn-Czarnota 
Seconded by: B. Agnew 
That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy I-26 Student Trustees on the Halton 
Catholic District School Board be forwarded, to the June 15, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 
for approval.  

 
The Chair called for a vote.  Recommendation P#56/21 DEFEATED 
 

In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
B. Agnew P. DeRosa  N. Gubert (non-

binding) 
N. Guzzo M. Duarte   
J. O’Hearn-Czarnota V. Iantomasi     
K. Kelly (non-binding) H. Karabela   
 P. Murphy   
 T. O’Brien   

 
4.5 Policy II-09 Opening and Closing Exercises (N. Guzzo, K. Kelly) 

Moved by:  B. Agnew 
Seconded by: M. Duarte 
That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy II-09 Opening and Closing Exercises be 
forwarded, to the June 15, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for approval.  
 
(AMENDMENT 1) 
Moved by: M. Duarte 
Seconded by: H. Karabela 

4



Minutes of the June 08, 2021 Policy Committee Meeting 5 

 

That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy II-09 Opening and Closing Exercises be 
forwarded, to the June 15, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for approval and that under 
requirements in the second bullet it should read “may” instead of “shall”   
“Land acknowledgements may form part of every opening or closing exercise.  

 
Following discussion Trustee Duarte and Trustee Karabela withdrew the amendment. 
 
The Chair called for a vote.  (Amendment 1) DEFEATED  
 

In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
 B. Agnew  N. Gubert (non-

binding) 
 P. DeRosa   
 M. Duarte   
 V. Iantomasi   
 H. Karabela   
 P. Murphy   
 T. O’Brien   
 J. O’Hearn-Czarnota   
 K. Kelly (non-

binding) 
  

 
 

(AMENDMENT 2) 
Moved by: H. Karabela  
Seconded by: T. O’Brien 
That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy II-09 Opening and Closing Exercises be 
forwarded, to the June 15, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for approval and that under 
requirements in the first bullet addition of “and shall include the Our Father”. 
 
(AMENDMENT 3) 
Moved by:  T. O’Brien 
Seconded by: V. Iantomasi 
That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy II-09 Opening and Closing Exercises be 
forwarded, to the June 15, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for approval and that under 
requirements in the first bullet addition of “and shall include the Our Father, recited in an 
Indigenous language. 
 

Trustees were in agreement to forward amendments to Policy II-09 Opening and Closing 
Exercises to the Sherry Saevil, Indigenous Education Advisor (Curriculum Services), for 
feedback then to SEAC, and CPIC for their feedback. 
 
 
P#57/21  
Moved by: P. Murphy  
Seconded by: T. O’Brien 
That, the Policy Committee approves to extend the Policy Committee Meeting beyond  
10:00 p.m. 
 

5



Minutes of the June 08, 2021 Policy Committee Meeting 6 

 

The Chair called for a vote.  P#57/21 CARRIED  
 

In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
B. Agnew V. Iantomasi  N. Gubert (non-

binding) 
P. DeRosa    
M. Duarte    
H. Karabela    
P. Murphy    
T. O’Brien    
J. O’Hearn-Czarnota    
K. Kelly (non-binding)    

 
 

P#58/21  
Moved by: P. Murphy  
Seconded by M. Duarte  
That, the resolution regarding Policy I-26 Student Trustees on the HCDSB be reconsidered.  

   
The Chair overruled a point of order regarding reconsideration of the resolution regarding 
Policy I-26 Student Trustees on the HCDSB.  
 
The Chair called for a vote.  Recommendation P#58/21 DEFEATED 
 

In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
B. Agnew M. Duarte  N. Gubert (non-

binding) 
P. Murphy P. DeRosa   
N. Guzzo V. Iantomasi   
J. O’Hearn-Czarnota H. Karabela   
K. Kelly (non-binding) T. O’Brien   

 
 

4.6 Policy V-08 School Anniversary Celebrations (L. Naar, A. Swinden) 
P#59/21 
Moved by:  H. Karabela 
Seconded by: J. O’Hearn-Czarnota 
That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy V-08 School Anniversary Celebrations 
be forwarded, to the June 15, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for approval.  

 
The Chair called for a vote.  Recommendation P#59/21 UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED 
 

4.7 Policy V-12 Blessing and Official Opening of a New School (L. Naar, A. Swinden) 
P#60/21 
Moved by:  T. O’Brien 
Seconded by: J. O’Hearn-Czarnota 
That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy V-12 Blessing and Official Opening of a 
New School be forwarded, to the June 15, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for approval.  

 
 
 

6



Minutes of the June 08, 2021 Policy Committee Meeting 7 

 

P#60/21 (AMENDMENT) 
Moved by: V. Iantomasi 
Seconded by: P. DeRosa 
That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy V-12 Blessing and Official Opening of a 
New School be forwarded, to the June 15, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for approval with 
the “Ground Breaking Ceremony” section removed under Requirements.  

 
The Chair called for a vote.  Recommendation P#60/21 (AMENDMENT) DEFEATED 

 
In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
V. Iantomasi B. Agnew  N. Gubert (non-

binding) 
 P. DeRosa   
 M. Duarte   
 N. Guzzo   
 H. Karabela   
 P. Murphy   
 T. O’Brien   
 J. O’Hearn-Czarnota   
 K. Kelly (non-

binding) 
  

 
 

The Chair called for a vote.  Recommendation P#60/21 CARRIED 
   

In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
B. Agnew V. Iantomasi  N. Gubert (non-

binding) 
P. DeRosa    
M. Duarte    
N. Guzzo    
H. Karabela    
P. Murphy    
T. O’Brien    
J. O’Hearn-Czarnota    
K. Kelly (non-binding)    

 
 
 

4.8  Policy V-13 Blessing and Rededication of a Major Addition to a School (L. Naar, A. 
Swinden) 
P#61/21 
Moved by:  B. Agnew 
Seconded by: M. Duarte 
That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy V-13 Blessing and Rededication of a 
Major Addition to a School be forwarded, to the June 15, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for 
approval. 
 
 
 

7



Minutes of the June 08, 2021 Policy Committee Meeting 8 

 

P#61/21 (AMENDMENT) 
Moved by: V. Iantomasi 
Seconded by: P. DeRosa 
That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy V-13 Blessing and Rededication of a 
Major Addition to a School be forwarded, to the June 15, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for 
approval with the removal of the first bullet under the Application and Scope section. 
 
The Chair called for a vote.  Recommendation P#61/21 (AMENDMENT) DEFEATED 
 

In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
V. Iantomasi B. Agnew  N. Gubert (non-

binding) 
P. DeRosa M. Duarte   
H. Karabela N. Guzzo   
 P. Murphy   
 T. O’Brien   
 J. O’Hearn-Czarnota   
 K. Kelly (non-

binding) 
  

 
The Chair called for a vote.  Recommendation P#61/21 CARRIED 

   
In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
B. Agnew V. Iantomasi  N. Gubert (non-

binding) 
M. Duarte P. DeRosa   
N. Guzzo    
H. Karabela    
P. Murphy    
T. O’Brien    
J. O’Hearn-Czarnota    
K. Kelly (non-binding)    

 
 

P#62/21 
Moved by: M. Duarte 
Seconded by: T. O’Brien 
That, the Policy Committee approves to extend the Policy Committee Meeting beyond 10:30 
p.m. 
 
The Chair called for a vote on P#62/21. The vote was not unanimous therefore the meeting 
had to adjourn.  

 
The Chair called for a vote.  Recommendation P#62/21 DEFEATED 
 

In favour Opposed Abstain Absent 
B. Agnew V. Iantomasi  N. Gubert (non-

binding) 
P. DeRosa    
M. Duarte    
N. Guzzo    

8



Minutes of the June 08, 2021 Policy Committee Meeting 9 

 

H. Karabela    
P. Murphy    
T. O’Brien    
J. O’Hearn-Czarnota    
K. Kelly (non-binding)    

 
POST NOTES: 

 
4.9 Rescind Policy IV-07 Alternative Arrangements for School Facilities (A. Lofts) 

The meeting was adjourned 
 

4.10 Rescind Policy IV-08 School Sites and Operating Budget (A. Lofts) 
 The meeting was adjourned 

 
4.11 HCDSB Procedural By-Laws (P. Murphy) 
 The meeting was adjourned 

 
5. Discussion Items   

There were no Discussion items.  
 

6. Information Items  
6.1 Administrative Procedure VI-17 International Student Admission Requirements (Non-

Resident) (A. Lofts, A. Cordeiro) 
6.2 Administrative Procedure VI-61 Recognition and Acknowledgement of Dignitaries, Board 

Officials at Board and School Events (L. Naar, A. Swinden) 
6.3  Administrative Procedure VI-83 Video Surveillance (M. Grysiuk) 
6.4  Administrative Procedure VI-84 Catholic School Councils and Catholic Parent 

Involvement Committee (N. Dinolfo) 
6.5  Administrative Procedure VI-94 International Student Program - Agents of Fee Paying 

Students (A. Lofts, A. Cordeiro) 
6.6  2020-2021 Policy Committee Work Plan (E. Bakaic) 
 
The meeting was adjourned 
 

7. Miscellaneous Information 
The meeting was adjourned.  

 
8. In-Camera  

The meeting was adjourned 
 

9. Motion to Excuse Absent Committee Members 
 There were no absentees.  
 
10. Motion to Adjourn/ Closing Prayer (T. O’Brien) 

T. O’Brien closed the meeting with prayer at 10:35 p.m. 
 

9



www.hcdsb.org  Page 1 of 1 

 

                        

Policy Committee Meeting                             Action Report 

Policy I-19 Occupational Health and Safety Item 4.1  

September 14, 2021 

 

Purpose             

To provide for the consideration of the Policy Committee revisions to Policy I-19 Occupational Health and Safety as 
recommended by staff. 

Commentary 

The Occupational Health and Safety Act Section 25 (j) states that School Boards are required to “prepare and 
review at least annually a written Occupational Health and Safety Policy” and Section 25 (k) requires the employer 
to post a copy of the policy in a conspicuous location in the workplace. 

The Occupational Health and Safety Policy must include the employer’s commitment to preventing occupational 
illness and injury in the workplace as well as their responsibility to implement and maintain a safe and healthy 
work environment.  The policy must also include supervisor and worker responsibility statements as they pertain 
to health and safety in the workplace.  Supervisors have the responsibility to ensure that safe and healthy work 
conditions are maintained in their work areas.  Workers have the responsibility to work safely and in accordance 
with both legislated and employer procedures. 

As per legislated requirements, this policy will be reviewed, revised if necessary and dated within a twelve (12) 
month period.  Copies will be provided to each site and supervisors will be responsible for posting the policy 
annually in a conspicuous location in the workplace. 

The Executive Officer of Human Resources and Human Resources Services Management staff have reviewed the 
policy. A References section has been added. Apart from minor housekeeping changes, there are no changes to the 
policy for the 2021-2022 school year. 

The revised Policy I-19 is attached for review and consideration by the Policy Committee. 

Recommendation 

The following recommendation is presented for the consideration of the Board: 

 Moved by:  

 Seconded by:  

That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy 1-19 Occupational Health and Safety, be forwarded to the 
September 21, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for approval.  

Report Prepared by:  E. Bakaic 
    Superintendent of Education, School Services  
   
Report Submitted by:  P. Daly  

Director of Education and Secretary of the Board 

10



 

                        

11

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-79%20Indoor%20Air%20Quality%20Investigation%20Process.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-92%20Roof%20Access%20Procedures.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-12%20Management%20of%20Aggressive%20Student%20Behaviours%20Within%20Our%20Schools.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/III-15%20Workplace%20Violence.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/III-16%20Workplace%20Discrimination%20and%20Harassment.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-04%20Complaints%20Resolution%20Process%20-%20Workplace%20Discrimination%20Harassment%20Violence.pdf
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2F90o01&data=04%7C01%7CZammitM%40hcdsb.org%7C4e91aa796fa54e43460408d96d5c9a83%7C2537ab7d25bd498aa6427c135779e6d2%7C1%7C0%7C637661066752737656%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=P6rvMA4rxh7StDQW%2FanQXu9UpT2NTFgCWzqqPpGjDwU%3D&reserved=0


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12



 

 

                        

  

13



 

                        

14

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-04%20Complaints%20Resolution%20Process%20-%20Workplace%20Discrimination%20Harassment%20Violence.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/III-05%20Employee%20Assault.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-39%20Progressive%20Discipline%20and%20Safety%20In%20Schools.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-44%20Progressive%20Discipline%20and%20Safety%20in%20Schools.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/s09023
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwits-OqoKvkAhXMmeAKHZtSCNAQFjAAegQIAhAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2F90e02&usg=AOvVaw0gfsNm4CmvXQoD6zEnjOvx
http://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=3&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwituZO1oKvkAhVoUd8KHeULCkUQFjACegQIAxAC&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontla.on.ca%2Flibrary%2Frepository%2Fmon%2Font%2Fed%2F2000%2Fconduct.pdf&usg=AOvVaw2EYf2WHH7HZK5l7DOmQO0M
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ffiles.ontario.ca%2Fworkplace_violence_in_school_boards_roadmap_01_en.pdf&data=04%7C01%7Ccockwelll%40hcdsb.org%7C587b10d902b24955c2dd08d951e520fb%7C2537ab7d25bd498aa6427c135779e6d2%7C1%7C0%7C637630866798035724%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=3ztKSEB1FxgJZJJw%2BaMcazIqvzftEy7H8rvhnymSQCI%3D&reserved=0


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17



 

18



www.hcdsb.org  Page 1 of 1 

 

                        

Policy Committee Meeting                             Action Report 
Policy III-16 Workplace Discrimination and 
Harassment 

Item 4.3 

September 14, 2021 

Purpose             
To provide for the consideration of the Policy Committee revisions to Policy III-16 Workplace 
Harassment and Discrimination as recommended by staff. 

Commentary 
Policy III-16 Workplace Discrimination and Harassment is reviewed on an annual basis. The 
Ontario Occupational Health and Safety Act requires that employers implement specific workplace 
harassment policies and procedures and ensure that incidents and complaints of workplace 
harassment are properly investigated. Similarly, the Ontario Human Rights Code requires employers 
to ensure the workplace is free from harassment on a number of prescribed and prohibited grounds. 

The Executive Officer of Human Resources and Human Resources Services Management staff have 
reviewed the policy and recommend that apart from minor housekeeping, no changes to the policy 
for the 2021-2022 school year. 

The revised Policy III-16 Workplace Discrimination and Harassment is attached for review and 
consideration by the Policy Committee. 

Recommendation 
The following recommendation is presented for the consideration of the Board: 

 

 Moved by:  

 Seconded by:  

That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy III-16 Workplace Discrimination and 
Harassment be forwarded to the September 21, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for approval.  

 

Report Prepared by:  E. Bakaic 
    Superintendent of Education, School Services  
 
Report Submitted by   P. Daly 
    Director of Education and Secretary of the Board 

19



 

                        

20

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-04%20Complaints%20Resolution%20Process%20-%20Workplace%20Discrimination%20Harassment%20Violence.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-36%20Trustee%20Code%20of%20Conduct.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-43%20Use%20of%20Technology%20and%20Digital%20Citizenship.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-62%20Use%20of%20Technology%20and%20Digital%20Citizenship.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-39%20Progressive%20Discipline%20and%20Safety%20In%20Schools.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-39%20Progressive%20Discipline%20and%20Safety%20In%20Schools.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-44%20Progressive%20Discipline%20and%20Safety%20in%20Schools.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h19
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/s09023
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiWq9-z45TkAhVDqp4KHcoTC9wQFjAAegQIAhAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2F90e02&usg=AOvVaw0gfsNm4CmvXQoD6zEnjOvx
http://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=3&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjy2ZfO45TkAhVSsZ4KHQkpB4EQFjACegQIBRAC&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontla.on.ca%2Flibrary%2Frepository%2Fmon%2Font%2Fed%2F2000%2Fconduct.pdf&usg=AOvVaw2EYf2WHH7HZK5l7DOmQO0M


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24



 

25



 

 

                        

26



 

                        

 

 

 

 

27

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/2016%20Procedural%20By-Laws%20-%20June%2021,%202016.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/V-18%20Community%20Engagement%20and%20Public%20Consultation%20Policy.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m56


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29



 

 

 

 

30



1 
 

31



2 
 

 

  

 

32



3 
 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

33



4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

34



5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

35



6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

36



7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37



8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

38



9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

39



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40

https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/2016-Procedural-By-Laws-June-21-2016.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/V-18-Community-Engagement-and-Public-Consultation-Policy.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/V-09-Public-Concerns-Complaints-Process.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Guidelines-for-Trustee-Communications.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/I-06-Delegation-to-the-Board.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/I-36-Trustee-Code-of-Conduct.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-06%20Delegation%20to%20the%20Board.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



 

 

43

https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/2016-07-Delegation-to-Board-General.pdf


 

 

                        

44



 

                        

● 

● 

● 

45

https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwi5iuzB7vzdAhVEWq0KHXXFBu0QFjAAegQIAhAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2F90e02&usg=AOvVaw0gfsNm4CmvXQoD6zEnjOvx
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiYyrmf7_zdAhVQMqwKHe6GAaQQFjAAegQICBAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2FS00012&usg=AOvVaw2Se8Op_50fLEs4MW7qRyAn
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj8sLSo7_zdAhUEXa0KHbilAgoQFjAAegQIAxAC&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fregulation%2F900298&usg=AOvVaw2ZpC1zmHD9Tq1yr7MzX5Sq


 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

o 

o 

 

46



www.hcdsb.org  Page 1 of 1 

 

                        

Policy Committee Meeting                             Action Report 

IV-07 Alternative Arrangements for School Facilities Item 4.7 

September 14, 2021 

 

Purpose             
To request that IV-07 Alternative Arrangements for School Facilities be rescinded. 
 

Commentary 
 

In 2018, the Ontario Government amended the EDC regulation to eliminate the requirement that 
school boards (i) annually review their budgets to find operating surpluses that can be allocated to 
reduce EDCs and (ii) determine if alternative accommodation arrangements are available. The Board 
is no longer obligated to do either of these tasks.  Therefore, this policy is no longer relevant and 
should be rescinded.  

 

Recommendation 
The following recommendation is presented for the consideration of the Board: 

 

 Moved by:  

 Seconded by:  

That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy IV-07 Alternative Arrangements for School 
Facilities, be forwarded to the September 21, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for approval to rescind. 

 

 
Report Prepared by:  B. Vidovic 

Senior Manager, Planning Services 
 
A Lofts 
Superintendent of Business Services and Treasurer of the Board 

 
Report Submitted by: P. Daly 
    Director of Education and Secretary of the Board 

47



 

www.hcdsb.org  Page 1 of 2 

                        

  Policy No. IV-07 

Alternative Arrangements for School Facilities 
Adopted:  
May 18, 1999 

Last Reviewed/Revised: 
March 5, 2019 

Next Scheduled Review: 2021-2022 

Associated Policies & Procedures: N/A 

 

Purpose             
To set out the Halton Catholic District School Board’s intention to consider possible alternate 
arrangements for the accommodation of elementary and secondary school pupils to the conventional 
process under which a school site is acquired and a stand-alone school is built on it. 

 

Application and Scope          
This policy applies to all new elementary and secondary schools being contemplated by the Board. 

 

Principles 

• A number of legislative provisions encourage school boards to consider alternative arrangements 
for the accommodation of students and the Board has determined that these possibilities should 
be explored. 

• The Board recognizes that alternative arrangements can provide an opportunity to improve 
service delivery and peak enrolment capacity, reduce duplication of public facilities, maximize 
the effective use of available dollars, and reduce site size requirements.  These may include a 
variety of acquisition strategies such as forward buying, options, purchases, lease buy-back, 
sites exchanges and joint venture partnerships. 

• The Board shall retain sufficient governance authority over the facility to ensure that it is able to 
deliver the appropriate educational program to its pupils and to ensure that its identity, 
ambiance and integrity are preserved.  All arrangements must be consistent with the Mission 
and set of Governing Values of the Board. 

• The Board must be responsive to the needs of the system as perceived by the extended 
educational community. 

• Prior to approving any new school accommodation, the Board will ensure that it has reviewed a 
full report setting out the possible arrangements that have been considered. 

• The Board will consider possible arrangements with municipalities, school boards or other 
persons or bodies in the public or private sector, including arrangements of a long-term or 

48



  
 
Policy No. IV-07 | Alternative Arrangements for School Facilities  
  
 

www.hcdsb.org  Page 2 of 2 

cooperative nature, which would provide accommodation for the new elementary school pupils 
and new secondary school pupils who are resident pupils of the Board, subject to the principles 
and requirements as set out in this and other Board policy. 

• The arrangements must be cost effective and advantageous for the Board compared to other 
possible arrangements including an acquisition of a school site and the construction of a free-
standing building. 

• The arrangement shall comply with any guidelines issued by the Ministry of Education. 

• The Board may enter into lease arrangements respecting school facilities intended to be used to 
accommodate peak enrolment, but shall not enter into such arrangements respecting school 
facilities that are necessary to accommodate long-term enrolment unless the arrangements 
could result in ownership at the Board’s discretion. 

 

 

 

APPROVED: Regular Meeting of the Board 

 

AUTHORIZED BY: _______________________________________ 

   Chair of the Board 

49



www.hcdsb.org  Page 1 of 1 

 

                        

Policy Committee Meeting                             Action Report 

IV-08 School Sites and Operating Budget Item 4.8 

September 14, 2021 

 

Purpose             
To request that Policy IV-08 School Sites and Operating Budget be rescinded. 

 

Commentary 
In 2018, the Ontario Government amended the EDC regulation to eliminate the requirement that 
school boards (i) annually review their budgets to find operating surpluses that can be allocated to 
reduce EDCs and (ii) determine if alternative accommodation arrangements are available. The Board 
is no longer obligated to do either of these tasks.  Therefore, this policy is no longer relevant and 
should be rescinded.  

Recommendation 
The following recommendation is presented for the consideration of the Board: 

 

 Moved by:  

 Seconded by:  

That, the Policy Committee recommends that Policy IV-08 School Sites and Operating Budget, be 
forwarded to the September 21, 2021 Regular Board Meeting for approval to rescind. 

 

 
Report Prepared by:  B. Vidovic 

Senior Manager, Planning Services 
 
A Lofts 
Superintendent of Business Services and Treasurer of the Board 

 
Report Submitted by: P. Daly 
    Director of Education and Secretary of the Board 

50



 

www.hcdsb.org  Page 1 of 3 

                        

  Policy No. IV-08 

School Sites and Operating Budget 
Adopted:  
May 18, 1999 

Last Reviewed/Revised: 
March 5, 2019 

Next Scheduled Review: 2021-2022 

Associated Policies & Procedures: N/A 

 

Purpose             
To set out the Board’s intention to conduct an annual review of operating budget savings that could 
be applied to reduce the growth related net education land costs. 

 

Application and Scope          
The process set out under this policy will be conducted annually as part of the preparations leading 
to setting of the annual budget estimates for the Board. 

 

Principles 

• Under the General Legislative Grant Regulation, only a surplus from the non-classroom part of 
the estimates is eligible to be used to acquire school sites. 

• If a review of the estimates has identified an operating budget saving that could be available to 
reduce education land costs, the Board will consider applying this saving to implement a 
reduction in the “growth related net education land cost” and the education development charge 
that may be levied by the Board. 

• Where there has been or it appears that there will be surplus in the non-classroom part of the 
estimates of the Board in a fiscal year, a clear record will be kept of the Board’s decision as it 
relates to this surplus. 

• The application of this policy shall comply with any guidelines issued by the Ministry of 
Education.  

• The application of this policy shall take into consideration any changes in Legislation or 
Regulation that may affect its implementation. 

• Prior to finalizing the annual budget estimates, the Board shall review the operating budget for 
savings that could be applied to growth related net education land costs. 

• Where there has been or it appears that there will be surplus in the non-classroom part of the 
estimates of the Board in the fiscal year, the Board shall determine whether all, part, or none of 

51



  
 
Policy No. IV-08 | School Sites and Operating Budget  
  
 

www.hcdsb.org  Page 2 of 3 

the surplus will be designated as available for the purpose of acquiring school sites by purchase, 
lease, or otherwise. 

• Where there has been or it appears that there will be surplus in the non-classroom part of the 
estimates of the Board in a fiscal year, the Board shall pass a motion substantially in the form 
attached as Appendix “A” to this policy. 

• Where there has been or it appears that there will be surplus in the non-classroom part of the 
estimates of the Board in a fiscal year, reasons for the decision related to this surplus shall be 
included in the motion or as part of the public record related to the motion. 

 

 

 

APPROVED: Regular Meeting of the Board 

 

AUTHORIZED BY: _______________________________________ 

 Chair of the Board 

 

 

  

52



  
 
Policy No. IV-08 | School Sites and Operating Budget  
  
 

www.hcdsb.org  Page 3 of 3 

APPENDIX “A” 

 
Halton Catholic District School Board 

Board Motion Pursuant to the Policy entitled “School Sites – Operating Budget Surplus” 
Concerning the Use of Operating Budget Surpluses for the Acquisition of School Sites 

 

Whereas it appears that there will be a surplus in the non-classroom part of the budget in the 
amount of $X; 

Moved that: 

1. The Board will designate $Y as available for the purpose of acquiring school sites by purchase, 
lease or otherwise; 

2. The Board’s reason for so deciding are as follows: 

 

53



 

 

                        

54



 

  

55



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 1 of 19 
 

HALTON CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

PROCEDURAL BY-LAWS 

JUNE 2016 

1.  PREAMBLE 

1.1  Education Act The provisions of the Education Act, R.S.O. 1990. c. E-2, as amended from 
time to time, and any related Ontario Regulations take precedence over 
any By-Laws formulated by the Halton Catholic District School Board; 
hereafter referred to as the Board.  

1.2  Rules and Regulations The rules and regulations contained in this By-Law shall be observed in all 
proceedings by the Board and shall be the rules and regulations for the 
order and dispatch of the business of the Board and its Committees except 
where statute or legislative regulation otherwise provides.  

1.3  Robert’s Rules of Order In any instance or instances not provided in statute or in this By-Law, 
Board Policies and Regulations or the Education Act, Robert’s Rules of 
Order shall govern insofar as they are applicable.  

 

2.  DEFINITIONS 

2.1  The singular includes the plural. 

2.2  ACT means the Education Act as amended from time to time. 

2.3  ACTION REPORT means a report that requires a resolution by the Board of Trustees.  

2.4 AD HOC COMMITTEE means a committee where Trustees may, from time to time, form working 
groups to address specific issues which shall report to the Board of 
Trustees.  Membership may include Trustees and staff and other 
individuals as appropriate.  Examples of Ad Hoc Committees include: 

 School Uniform Committee  

2.5 BOARD means the Halton Catholic District School Board which, in accordance with 
the ACT, is a Roman Catholic School Board in union with the See of Rome 
and operates in the Regional Municipality of Halton. 

2.6 CHAIR means Chair of the Board, except where otherwise indicated as meaning 
chair of any committee or sub-committee of the Board.  

2.7 COMMITTEE means any Statutory, Standing or Ad-Hoc Committee established by the 
Board. 

2.8 CONSENSUS means Trustees present at the meeting can ‘support’ or ‘live with’ a 
proposed direction or decision, without a formal call for votes.   

2.9 CONFLICT OF INTEREST means a direct or indirect pecuniary interest as defined by the Municipal 
Conflict of Interest Act R.S.O. 1990. c. M-50 as amended from time to time.  

2.10 DIRECTOR means the Director of Education who is Chief Education Officer and Chief 
Executive Officer of the school system and Secretary of the Board;  

2.11 EX OFFICIO means a member who is permitted to act by virtue of office. The ex-officio 
member does not vote and is not counted in determining a quorum.  

2.12 IN-CAMERA means a meeting of the Board or of Board Committee from which the 
public is excluded when the subject-matter under consideration involves 
matters appropriately addressed In-Camera:  
(i) The security of property of the Board 

(ii) The disclosure of intimate, personal or financial information in respect 
of a member of the Board or committee, an employee or prospective 
employee of the Board or a pupil or his or her parent or guardian; 

(iii) The acquisition or disposal of a school site; 
(iv) The acquisition or disposal of property; 
(v) Decisions in respect of negotiations with employees of the Board; or 

56



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 2 of 19 
 

(vi) Litigation affecting the Board.  

2.13 INFORMATION REPORT means a report submitted by staff and presented at a Board meeting for 
the information of Trustees. The information is deemed to have been 
received by virtue of inclusion in the Agenda.  No action is required.  

2.14 MEETING includes a meeting of the Board and of a Committee. All meetings are 
open to the public except for In-Camera meetings as per 2.12.  

2.15 MEMBER means elected Trustee of the Board. 

2.16 MISCELLANEOUS 
INFORMATION 

means information of a general nature provided to Trustees at a Board 
meeting. The information is deemed to have been received by virtue of 
inclusion in the Agenda. No action is required. 

2.17 QUORUM 
 

means a majority of 50% or more of all members, excluding Student 
Trustees, who are entitled to vote.  

2.18 SCRUTINEER means a person who observes any process which requires oversight. The 
scrutineer observes the counting of ballot papers, and ensures that 
election rules are followed.  

2.19 SIMPLE MAJORITY means a majority of Trustees present and eligible to vote. 

2.20 SECRETARY OF THE 
BOARD 

means the Director of Education. 

2.21 STAFF REPORT means a report submitted and presented to Trustees at a Board meeting 
for the information of Trustees.  This initial report is to provide information 
and raise awareness regarding items that may subsequently become 
action reports. A follow-up report will typically be presented as an Action 
Item at a future Board meeting. 

2.22 STANDING COMMITTEE means a committee formed to deal with longstanding and ongoing issues 
relating to the decision-making responsibilities of the Board of Trustees, 
and that will periodically bring a recommendation to the Board.  Examples 
include:  

 Employee Assistance Program Committee 

 Policy Committee  

 Salary and Bargaining Advisory Committee 

2.23 STATUTORY 
COMMITTEE 

means a committee established as a result of legislation or Ministry of 
Education mandate.  These committees have Trustee representation and a 
staff person is also assigned as resource to provide expertise, 
administrative requirements and provide necessary information.  
Committees include: 

 Audit Committee 

 Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC) Ontario Regulation 
464/07 s.1 

 Discipline Committee 

 Catholic Parent Involvement Committee (CPIC) – Ontario Ministry of 
Education, 2005  Parent Involvement Advisory Committee Policy 

 Supervised Alternative Learning (SAL) 

2.24 STUDENT TRUSTEE means the student representative elected by his/her peers to represent 
pupils on the Board in accordance with the Act and Regulations. 

2.25 TWO THIRDS means not less than two-thirds of Trustees present and eligible to vote.  

2.26 TREASURER Subsection 170 (1).1 of the Education Act requires that the Board appoint 
a Treasurer. 

2.27 TRUSTEE means a person elected, acclaimed or appointed to the office of Trustee of 
the Board pursuant to the provisions of the Municipal Elections Act 
1996.S.O. 1990. C. 32. Sched., as amended from time to time and the 
Education Act  

57



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 3 of 19 
 

2.28 VICE-CHAIR means the Vice-Chair of the Board, except where otherwise indicated as 
meaning Vice-Chair of any committee or sub-committee of the Board. 

2.29 WORKING STAFF 
COMMITTEE 

means a Committee established at the discretion of the Director which 
may, from time to time, require the participation of Trustees.   

2.30 48 HOURS means a notice that includes Saturday, Sunday and Statutory holidays. 

 

3.  
 

INAUGURAL MEETING OF THE BOARD 

3.1 Date of the Inaugural 
Meeting of the Board 

In the year in which municipal elections  take place, the Inaugural Meeting 
of the Board shall be held on the first Tuesday in December commencing at 
7:00 p.m., following a 6:00 p.m. Mass. 

3.2 Purpose of Inaugural 
Meeting 

The purpose of the Inaugural Meeting shall be to fulfil the requirements of 
the Act and Regulations, including the election of the Chair and Vice-Chair. 

3.3 Presiding Officer at the 
Inaugural Meeting 

The Secretary shall act as Chair pro tem, or in the absence of the Secretary, 
his/her designate, until the Chair is elected. 

3.4 Bishop’s Attendance The Bishop or his delegates are to be invited to the Inaugural Meeting of 
the Board.  

3.5 Order of Business 1.  Eucharistic Celebration (6:00 p.m.)   
2.  Entry Procession (7:00 p.m.)  

3.  Opening Prayer and Welcoming Remarks: Director of Education  
4.  Reading of Clerk’s Notices certifying to the election of the members: 

Director of Education 
5. Remarks and Commissioning of Trustees – Bishop 

6. Declaration of Oath of Allegiance (for those members who wish to 
take the Oath of Allegiance) and Declaration of Office - Judge  

7. Declaration of Board as Legally Constituted  
8. Election / Installation / Remarks of Board Chair  

9. Election / Installation / Remarks of Board Vice-Chair 
10. Resolutions is:  

10.1 Banking Authority 
11. Expressions of Appreciation – Chair 
12. Closing Prayer and Adjournment 

3.6 PROCEDURE FOR ELECTION OF OFFICERS AT THE INAUGURAL MEETING 

3.6.1 Procedural 
Requirements 

The Secretary shall or call upon an invited judge to: 
(i) read the return of the municipal clerks certifying to the election of the 

members; 

(ii) ascertain that the members have met all procedural requirements 
and are eligible to take office;  

(iii) administer or arrange for the administering to each member of the 
Board the appropriate Declaration of Office and Oath of Allegiance 
(for those members who wish to take the Oath of Allegiance)  

(iv) declare the Board to be legally constituted. 

3.6.2 
 

Election Process 
 

The Secretary shall then conduct the election to the office of 
Chair of the Board, which shall be as follows:  All Trustees-elect 

are eligible to participate. 
(i) The Secretary shall appoint two scrutineers, whose names shall be 

recorded in the minutes.   
(ii) Nominations shall be called for the Office of Chair of the Board. 
(iii) A Student Trustee is ineligible for nomination. 
(iv) Each nomination shall require a mover and a seconder. 

58



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 4 of 19 
 

(v) Immediately after each nomination, the nominee shall confirm 
whether he/she wishes to accept or decline the nomination.  

(vi) After receiving all nominations, the Secretary shall call for 
nominations three more times, thereafter, the Secretary shall ask for 
a motion to close nominations. 

(vii) The Secretary will then ask the nominees, in the same order as they 
were nominated, if they wish to say a few words. Trustees may ask 
questions of each candidate.  

(viii) If more than one nomination is received, an election shall be 
conducted by secret ballot. 

(ix) The Secretary and/or designate shall act as election returning officer. 
(x) The Secretary shall announce the result of the ballot by declaring the 

name of the member elected and shall not declare the count. 
(xi) The member receiving a clear majority of the votes cast by all the 

members shall be declared elected.  Should no candidate receive a 
clear majority of the votes cast, the names of the candidate receiving 
the smallest number of votes shall be dropped.  The Board shall 
proceed to vote anew and so continue until a Chair is elected.  

(xii) In the case of an equality of votes at the election of a Chair or Vice-
Chair, the candidates shall draw lots to fill the position of Chair or 
Vice-Chair as the case may be pursuant to Section 208 (8) of the 
Education Act. 

(xiii) The Secretary shall announce the result of the ballot by declaring the 
name of the member elected and shall not declare the count.  

(xiv) A motion will be requested to destroy the ballots. 

3.6.3 Election of Vice-Chair The Secretary shall assume the Chair position and shall conduct the 
elections for the Vice-Chair of the Board in the manner prescribed for the 
election of the Chair, using the same procedures as set out in clause 3.6.2.  

3.6.4 Term of Office The term of office of the Chair and Vice-Chair positions and municipal 
appointment shall be for a period of one year, unless as otherwise 
required by the By-Laws of the Institution, Agency or Province to which 
the appointments are made. 

3.7 ELECTION OF OFFICERS – AT TIMES OTHER THAN THE INAUGURAL MEETING OF THE BOARD 

3.7.1 Election of Chair At the first meeting in December of each year, and at the first meeting 
after a vacancy occurs in the office of Chair, the Trustees shall elect one of 
themselves to be Chair. 

3.7.2 Election of Vice-Chair At the first meeting in December of each year and at the first meeting 
after a vacancy occurs in the office of Vice-Chair, the Trustees shall elect 
one of themselves to be Vice-Chair. 

3.7.3 Election Process For the purposes of section 3.7, the process outlined in Sections 3.6.2 and 
3.6.3 shall apply. 

3.8 APPOINTMENT OF TRUSTEES TO BOARD COMMITTEES 

3.8.1 Appointment process The Chair shall present for Board confirmation, Trustee appointments to 
all Standing, Statutory and Ad Hoc committees and to municipal agencies; 
or alternatively, present a date when such appointments shall be made.  
Such appointments shall be made no later than the next Regular Meeting 
of the Board.  

  

59



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 5 of 19 
 

 

4. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

 

4.1 REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS 

4.1.1 Time The Regular Meetings of the Board shall be held at the Catholic Education 
Centre at 7:30 p.m.  

4.1.2 Day The Regular Meeting of the Board shall be held on the first and third 
Tuesday of each month in the Board Room.  

4.1.3 Chairing the Meeting The Chair for each Regular Meeting of the Board will be the Chair of the 
Board or in the absence of the Chair, by the Vice-Chair of the Board. 

4.1.4 Notice The Secretary shall give each Trustee at least forty-eight (48) hours written 
notice (including Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays) of all meetings of 
the Board.  The student Trustees shall receive such notice of the meeting 
and other meetings as required.  

4.1.5 Summer Meetings There shall be no Regular Meetings scheduled from July 1st to August 31st.  
During July and August meetings may be held, as needed, at the call of the 
Chair.  The Regular Meeting of the Board, following the summer recess, 
shall be scheduled for the first Tuesday of September.  

4.1.6 Holy Week The Board, except for emergency, shall not meet during Holy Week. Any 
meeting scheduled for that week shall be re-scheduled to a date and time 
by majority vote of members.  

4.1.7 Public Attendance All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public, subject to article 
4.3.8. 

4.1.8 Adjournment Meetings of the Board shall adjourn not later than 11:00 p.m. 10:00 p.m., 
unless two-thirds (2/3) of the members present and voting agree to an 
extension of time.  In any event, the Board shall not conduct its business 
beyond 11:30 p.m. 10:30 p.m. without the unanimous consent of 
members’ present, save for the item on the table.  Unanimous consent is 
required every half hour thereafter.  

4.1.9 Cancellation of Meeting In the event of inclement weather or emergency; the Chair, in consultation 
with the Vice-Chair and the Director of Education or delegate may cancel a 
Regular Meeting of the Board. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair, 
in consultation with the Director or delegate may cancel a meeting. 

4.1.10 Notice of Cancellation Notice of cancellation of meeting, determined as provided in section 4.1.9, 
will be transmitted in the same manner as the notice of meeting.  In the 
event of inclement weather or an emergency, the Director of Education or 
delegate will notify Trustees by telephone and/or electronically and a 
notice of cancellation shall be posted at the meeting place.  

4.2 SPECIAL BOARD MEETINGS 

4.2.1 Authority to Convene Special meetings of the Board shall be scheduled on Tuesdays, where 
feasible and may be called by the Chair or shall be called upon the written 
request of five (5) members to the Secretary of the Board, specifying the 
subject(s) for which the meeting is to be held.  

4.2.2 Matters to be 
Considered 

The notice of every such Special Meeting shall state the business to be 
transacted. Notwithstanding any other provisions to the Board's By-Laws, 
no other business shall be considered except with the unanimous consent 
of Trustees present. 

4.2.3 Notice of Meeting The Secretary shall notify each member of the Board of any Special 
Meeting of the Board and distribution of Agenda and background material, 
where feasible, at least twenty-four (24) hours (excluding Saturdays and 
Sundays) previous to the time at which such meeting is to take place.  

60



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 6 of 19 
 

4.3 IN-CAMERA MEETINGS 

4.3.1 Time In-Camera Meetings of the Board shall be held prior to, and when 
necessary, following the Public Session meeting. In-Camera meetings will 
commence at 6:30 p.m. 7:00 p.m. and adjourn at 7:00 p.m.  
7:30 p.m. in order to allow Public Session to begin on time.  

4.3.2 Unfinished Business Any unfinished business will resume under Item 14 of the Regular Meeting 
of the Board Agenda. 

4.3.3 In-Camera 
Confidentiality and 
Fiduciary Obligations  

Matters discussed In-Camera are privileged and confidential and Trustees 
shall maintain their fiduciary obligations.  All reports prepared in support 
of an item on the In-Camera Agenda which is not open to the pubic shall 
be received in confidence and the materials and discussion shall be treated 
as confidential.  

4.3.4 Reporting Decisions at 
Public Session 

Information received In-Camera may be reported in public session, except 
as required to remain in the In-Camera minutes.  

4.3.5 In-Camera Matters Motions adopted or defeated will be recorded in the In-Camera minutes.  

4.3.6 Attendance at the In-
Camera Meetings 

The Director shall attend In-Camera meetings.  The Board or the Director 
may require the presence of Supervisory Officers and may admit other 
persons to In-Camera meetings. The Supervisory Officers or other such 
persons shall withdraw at the direction of the Chair or the Director when 
special circumstances warrant.  

4.3.7 Breach of Code of 
Conduct and/or 
Fiduciary Obligations 

A Trustee who has reasonable grounds to believe that another Trustee has 
breached In-Camera confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative 
requirements, or requirements of this By-Law, may bring the alleged 
breach to the attention of the Board. 
 

If an alleged breach is brought to the attention of the Board, the Board 
shall make inquiries into the matter and shall, based on the results of the 
inquiries, determine whether there has been a breach. 

 

If the Board determines that a Trustee has breached In-Camera 
confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, or 
requirements of this By-Law, the Board may impose one or more of the 
following sanctions: 

(a) Verbal warning by the Chair. 
(b) A letter of warning. 
(c) Censure of the Trustee. 
(d) Barring the Trustee from attending all or part of a meeting of the 

Board or a meeting of a committee of the Board. 

(e) Barring the Trustee from sitting on one or more committees of the 
Board, for the period of time specified by the Board. 

A Trustee who is barred from attending all or part of a meeting of the 
Board or a meeting of a committee of the Board is not entitled to receive 
any materials that relate to that meeting or that part of the meeting and 
that are not available to the members of the public. 
In appropriate circumstances, the Board may also resolve to disassociate 
the Board from any action or statement of a Trustee. 
 
In addition to the sanctions above, the Board may declare the office of the 
Chair and/or Vice-Chair to be vacant effective as of the date of the Board’s 
determination, where the Chair and/or Vice-Chair: 

(a) becomes disqualified as a Trustee; 

61



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 7 of 19 
 

(b) deliberately breaches any relevant legislation or other Ministry of 
Education requirements; 

(c) deliberately breaches any Board By-Laws, Policies, General 
Administrative Procedures or practices; and/or 

(d) acts in such a manner as to lose the confidence of the Board. 
 

If a Board determines that a Trustee has breached In-Camera 
confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, or 
requirements of this By-Law, the Board shall give the Trustee written 
notice of the determination and of any sanction imposed by the Board. 
The notice shall inform the Trustee that he or she may make written 
submissions to the Board in respect of the determination or sanction by 
the date specified in the notice that is at least 14 days after the notice is 
received by the Trustee. 
 

The Board shall consider any submissions made by the Trustee and shall 
confirm or revoke the determination within 14 days after the Trustee’s 
submissions are received. 
 

If the Board revokes a determination that a Trustee has breached In-
Camera confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, 
or requirements of this By-Law, any sanction imposed by the Board is also 
revoked. 

 
If the Board confirms a determination that a Trustee has breached In-
Camera confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, 
or requirements of this By-Law, the Board shall, within 14 days after the 
Trustee’s submissions were received, confirm, vary or revoke the 
sanction(s) imposed by the Board. 
 
If a sanction is varied or revoked, the variation or revocation shall be 
deemed to be effective as of the date the original determination about the 
alleged breach was made by the Board. 

 
Despite subsection 207(1) of the Education Act which requires meetings of 
the Board to be open to the public, but subject to the requirements below 
for specific resolutions of the Board to be made in public, the Board may 
close to the public the part of the meeting during which a breach or 
alleged breach of In-Camera confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any 
legislative requirements, or requirements of this By-Law, is considered 
when the breach or alleged breach involves any of the following matters: 

(a) the security of the property of the Board; 
(b) the disclosure of intimate, personal or financial information in respect 

of a Trustee or committee, an employee or prospective employee of 
the Board or a student or his or her parent or guardian; 

(c) the acquisition or disposal of a school site; 
(d) decisions in respect of negotiations with employees of the Board; or 
(e) litigation affecting the Board. 
 
The Board shall do the following things by resolution at a meeting of the 
Board, and the vote on the resolution shall be open to the public: 

62



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 8 of 19 
 

(a) Make a determination that a Trustee has breached In-Camera 
confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, or 
requirements of this By-Law. 

(b) Impose a sanction on a Trustee for a breach of In-Camera 
confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, or 
requirements of this By-Law. 

(c) Confirm or revoke a determination regarding a Trustee’s breach of In-
Camera confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative 
requirements, or requirements of this By-Law. 

(d) Confirm, vary or revoke a sanction after confirming or revoking a 
determination regarding a Trustee’s breach of In-Camera 
confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, or 
requirements of this By-Law. 
 

A Trustee who is alleged to have breached In-Camera confidentiality, any 
Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, or requirements of this 
By-Law shall not vote on any of the resolutions listed above. 

When a resolution listed above is passed, the resolution shall be recorded 
in the Minutes of the meeting. 
 

The Statutory Powers Procedure Act does not apply to any the 
enforcement provisions under section 218.3 of the Education Act. 

 
Nothing in this provision prevents a Trustee’s breach of the Municipal  
Conflict of Interest Act from being dealt with in accordance with that Act.  

4.3.8 In-Camera Topics In accordance with the Act, a meeting of the Board may be closed to the 
public when the subject matter under consideration involves, 
the security of the property of the Board; 

(i) the disclosure of intimate, personal or financial information in respect 
of a member of the Board or committee, an employee or prospective 
employee of the Board or a pupil or a parent or guardian; 

(ii) the acquisition of disposal of a school site; or 
(iii) decisions in respect of negotiations with employees of the Board;  

4.4 ELECTRONIC MEETINGS (POLICY 1-28) 

4.4.1 Attendance A Trustee and/or Student Trustee who requests to participate in a meeting 
of the Board by electronic means and participates by such means in 
accordance with Board policy for the use of electronic means shall be 
deemed to be present at the meeting and shall be counted as part of the 
quorum and shall be entitled to vote on any matter on which he/she is 
eligible to vote.   

4.4.2 Physical Presence The Chair of the Board or designate, the Director of Education or designate 
and one other Trustee shall be physically present at all open and In-
Camera (closed) sessions of an electronic meeting of the Board in the 
Board Room or at a site or sites as otherwise determined by the Board.  

4.4.3 Vote by Secret Ballot 
 

 

In cases where a vote for the election of the Chair and Vice-Chair is to be 
conducted by secret ballot in accordance with the Board’s By-Laws, or the 
requirements of the Education Act or for any other reason, a Trustee who 
is eligible to vote on the matter, who is present at the meeting  by 
electronic means and who chooses to vote, may at the time votes are 
being cast, cast his or her vote by means of a private telephone 
conversation or by  e-mail with the scrutineer(s) who shall mark the vote 
on a paper ballot in the same form and manner as though the ballot had 

63



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 9 of 19 
 

been marked in person by the voter, and the ballot shall then be included 
with the other ballots to be counted. The ballots cast electronically in this 
matter are subject to the same obligations of confidentiality on the part of 
the scrutineer(s) as those cast by voters physically present at the meeting.  

 

5. QUORUM 
 

5.1 Quorum of the Board A majority of all Trustees of the Board, except for Student Trustees, shall 
constitute a quorum for Meetings of the Board. 

5.2 Declaring Pecuniary 
Interests 

When a Trustee declares pecuniary interests under the Municipal Conflict 
of Interest Act, the number of Trustees that constitutes a quorum in Article 
5.1 is adjusted as directed by the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act.  

5.3 If Quorum not Present If quorum is not present within fifteen (15) minutes after the time 
appointed for a meeting, the Board shall not convene and the Secretary 
shall record the names of Trustees present and the Board shall forthwith 
stand adjourned until the next Regular Meeting of the Board. 

5.4 Recording Lack of 
Quorum 

When a quorum is no longer in attendance, no business can be legally 
transacted and it shall be the responsibility of the presiding Chair and the 
Recording Secretary to note the lack of a quorum and have the fact 
recorded in the minutes and adjourn the meeting.  

5.5 Recording Trustees’ 
Absence   

When a member is absent from a Regular Meeting of the Board, for 
business or personal reasons, such absence and the reason for same be 
recorded in the minutes.  The Board may, by motion, grant permission for 
the absence and said resolution shall be entered in the minutes.  A 
member shall notify the Secretary prior to the Board meeting that the 
member will not be in attendance.  

5.6 Arrival and Departure 
Times 

The arrival time and departure time of Trustees must be recorded.  

 

6. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6.1 Delivery A member of the Board shall notify the Secretary in writing of the 
member's official address.  All notices or communications delivered 
electronically, or if necessary, mailed to the member at the address as 
given, shall be deemed to have been received by the member.  

 

7. COMMITTEES 
 

7.1 Committees Committees will meet as required, at the call of their respective Chairs, 
and may bring recommendations to the Board of Trustees for approval.  

7.2 AD HOC/STANDING COMMITTEES 

7.2.1 Establishment process   An Ad Hoc/Standing Committee may be established with the approval of 
the majority of the members of the Board for any purpose or need of the 
Board and will convene as required.  Each Ad Hoc/Standing Committee will 
report directly to the Board.  When its mandate is completed, the Ad Hoc 
Committee will step down. 

7.2.2 Committee 
Composition  

Following consultation with Trustees, the Chair shall present for Board 
confirmation, Trustee appointments to all Standing and Ad Hoc 
committees.   

64



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 10 of 19 
 

7.2.3 Election of Chair Having established the composition of the Ad Hoc/Standing Committee, 
the Committee, at its first meeting, shall select the Chair of the 
Committee.   

7.2.4 Initial Meeting An Ad Hoc/Standing Committee shall be first convened within one month 
of the date of the resolution appointing such committee and thereafter as 
determined by the Committee.  

7.2.5 Terms of Reference The Terms of Reference, duties/mandate and timelines shall be specifically 
outlined and approved by the Board following the initial meeting of the 
Committee.  

7.2.6 
 

Existence Ad Hoc Committees shall exist until the Committee presents its final 
recommendation to the Board for approval and thereafter dissolved; or at 
any time upon resolution of the Board; in any event, at the end of the term 
of office for the Board.   
 
Standing Committees shall exist such time upon resolution of the Board; in 
any event, at the end of the term of office of the Board.  

7.2.7 Non Members An Ad Hoc Committee may include members who are not members of the 
Board to deal with matters as assigned to it by the Board.  

7.2.8 Right to Speak of 
Members 

All Trustee members of Ad Hoc/Standing Committees shall have the right 
to speak to the report of the Committee when it is brought to the Board 
for consideration.  Members of the Committee who are not Trustees may 
be allowed to address the Board at the discretion of the Chair.  

7.2.9 Chair – Member of 
Committees 

The Chair or, in the Chair’s absence, the Vice-Chair of the Board shall be a 
member ex officio of Statutory, Ad Hoc  or Standing Committees 
established pursuant to  Article 2.11.  

7.2.10 Participation of 
Trustees Non-Members 

Any Trustee who is not a member of a committee may take part in the 
proceedings of the Committee but may not vote or move any motion, nor 
shall such Trustee be part of any quorum.  

7.2.11 Substitute Chair for 
Committees  

When a Committee Chair is unable to attend a meeting of the Board or a 
meeting of the/a Committee, the Committee Chair shall appoint a member 
of the Committee to substitute.  

7.2.12 Chair  The Chair may serve as Chair of an Ad Hoc or Standing Committee.  

7.2.13 Report to the Board The Committee shall make recommendations only on matters falling 
within the Committees’ Terms of Reference. Committees appointed to 
report on any matter referred to them by the Board shall report in writing 
to the Board. A minority of any committee may also report.  

7.3 STATUTORY COMMITTEES 

7.3.1  Members of the Board will be appointed to such committees as outlined in 
the Education Act and the regulations made thereunder. 

 

8. ROLE AND DUTIES OF THE CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR OF THE BOARD 
 

8.1 Role of Chair In addition to any other duties under the Act, the Chair of a Board shall,  

(a) preside over meetings of the Board; 
(b) conduct the meetings in accordance with this By-Law or other 

procedures and practices for the conduct of Board Meetings, and shall 
preserve order and decide all questions of order subject to an appeal 
to the board; 

(c) establish agendas for Board meetings, in consultation with the Board’s 
Director of Education; 

65



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 11 of 19 
 

(d) ensure that members of the Board have the information needed for 
informed discussion of the agenda items; 

(e) convey the decisions of the Board to the Board’s Director of Education; 
(f) provide leadership to the Board in maintaining the Board’s focus on 

the multi-year plan established under section 169.1 of the Act; 
(g) provide leadership to the Board in maintaining the Board’s focus on 

the Board’s mission and vision; and 
(h) assume such other responsibilities as may be specified by the Board. 

8.2 Absence of Chair In the absence of the Chair for any meeting, or part thereof, the Vice-Chair 
shall preside at the meeting and perform all duties appropriate to the 
Chair. 

8.3 Absence of Chair and 
Vice-Chair 

In the case of the absence of both the Chair and the Vice-Chair and where 
there is a quorum in attendance, the Secretary or designate shall call the 
meeting to order and a Chair who shall be chosen by the members present 
shall preside and act during such absence.  

8.4 Absence of Chair, Vice-
Chair and Secretary to 
the Board 

If the Chair, Vice-Chair and the Secretary are absent for the opening of a 
meeting and there is a quorum in attendance, the members present shall 
appoint a Chair and Secretary pro tem.  

8.5 Working Staff 
Committees 

When the Director requests a Trustee representative to sit on the Working 
Staff Committee, the Chair may sit on the Committee or select a designate 
representative based on interest, availability and existing commitments. 
The Chair, in consultation with Trustee members, shall ensure an equitable 
distribution of Trustee membership on committees.  

8.6 Official Representative 
of the Board 

The Chair or designate chosen by the Chair from among the other Trustees 
shall be an official representative of the Board at all public functions. 

8.7 Signing Authority and 
Public Announcements 

The Chair shall be an official signing officer of the Board and shall act as 
spokesperson to the public on behalf of the Board, unless otherwise 
determined by the Board for specific matters. Where the Chair of the 
Board is making public announcements, he/she shall represent the 
position of the Board.   

8.8 Signing Authority in the 
Chair’s Absence  

The Vice-Chair shall be an official signing officer of the Board and shall 
assume all the responsibilities, privileges and duties of the Chair in the 
absence or incapacity of the Chair for a period exceeding forty-eight (48) 
hours. 

8.9 Chair - Reporting 
Absence 

The Chair shall notify the Vice-Chair of his or her impending absence or 
incapacity. 

8.10 Death or Resignation of 
the Chair 

In the event of death or resignation of the Chair of the Board during the 
year, the Vice-Chair shall assume the Chair until the first Regular Meeting 
of the Board in December following.  

8.11 Death or Resignation of 
Vice-Chair 

In the event of the position of Vice-Chair becoming vacant for any reason 
(death, resignation or assuming the role of the Chair), a new Vice-Chair 
shall be elected, at the next meeting in accordance with Section 3.6.3.  

 

9. AGENDA 
 

9.1 Provision of Draft 
Agenda to Trustees 

A draft Agenda will be sent electronically to each member, seven (7) days 
prior to the next meeting.  

9.2 Provision of Final 
Agenda – Regular 
Meetings 

For Regular Meetings of the Board, the final Agenda and supporting 
documentation will be provided to each Trustee and Student Trustee on 
the Friday preceding the date of the meeting. 

66



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 12 of 19 
 

9.3 Provision of Final 
Agenda – Special Board 
Meeting 

The Secretary shall notify each member of the Board of any Special 
Meeting of the Board and distribution of Agenda and background material, 
where feasible, at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of such meeting 
(excluding Saturdays and Sundays) previous to the time at which such 
meeting is to take place.  

9.4 Posting Agenda The Board Agenda will be available on the Board’s Website on the Friday 
preceding the Board Meeting.  

9.5 Order of Business The order of Business for Regular meetings of the Board shall be as 
follows: 
(1) Call to Order 

o Land Acknowledgment, Opening Prayer, National Anthem and the 
Oath[BE1] of Citizenship 

o Motions Adopted In-Camera 
o Information Received In-Camera 

(2) Approval of Agenda: The Agenda shall be confirmed and may be 
amended (Refer to  By-Laws 9.6 & 9.7) 

(3) Declarations of Conflict of Interest: The Chair calls for those members 
present to disclose any conflict of interest on any matter which is to 
be the subject of consideration at the meeting.  

(4) Presentations: Of general nature  and might recognize outstanding 
achievements 

(5) Delegations: Refer to delegations to the Board – By-Law # 12 
(6) Approval of Minutes: To be considered by Trustees only with 

reference to the accuracy of the minutes as recorded. Corrections, 
additions or deletions shall be presented as motions, voted upon and 
recorded in the new minutes.  

(7) Business Arising from Previous Meetings: No topic under this item of 
the Agenda shall be introduced in the same context as the preceding 
meeting and any matter raised for discussion shall be considered only 
if further information is available and relative to the situation. Under 
this item, Trustee or staff may present new information related to 
business in the minutes and Trustees may question staff relevant to 
any follow-up action resulting from a decision or matter reported in 
the minutes.  

(8) Action Items: Reports presented requiring decision by the Board of 
Trustees.  

(9) Staff Reports: Staff reports requiring a decision or presenting 
information about the system, are presented under this section. The 
report may be presented as an Action Report at a future Board 
meeting.  

(10) Information Reports: Verbal or written reports to the Board that 
promotes student success and other issues of general nature.  

(11) Miscellaneous Information: Information of general nature, including 
notices. 

(12) Correspondence:  All correspondence requiring the collective decision 
of the Board and which has yet to be decided by the Board shall be 
tabled for Board consideration and direction. The Board shall provide 
direction as to how either the Chair or Secretary of the Board shall 
respond.  

(13) Open Question Period (ten minutes) – The Chair may recognize a 
member of the public in attendance at the meeting (refer to By- Law # 
13) 

67



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 13 of 19 
 

(14) In-Camera: Unfinished business; only those matters which fall under 
the Education Act may be discussed.  

(15) Resolution re Absentees: The Chair shall report in accordance with 
Section 5.5 of the Board By-Laws.  

(16) Adjournment/Closing Prayer 

9.6 Items on the Agenda Agenda of meetings of the Board shall be prepared by the Chair and Vice-
Chair, in consultation with the Secretary.  No matter shall be placed on the 
Agenda of a meeting of the Board unless: 

 It results from the report from a Committee and relates to a matter 
that has been referred to it by action of the  Board;  

 It is a report from Administration; 

 It is pursuant to a Notice of Motion made by an individual Trustee 
under the provisions of section # 9.12;  

 It is a matter that, in the opinion of the Secretary, requires action by 
the Board as matter of urgency; 

 Any Trustee may request that an item, other than an action item, be 
placed upon the Agenda and the Trustee shall give seven (7) days 
notice of such proposed Agenda items in writing to the Secretary. The 
Secretary and the Chair may in their discretion add such proposed 
Agenda items to the Agenda.  

9.7 Items not included on 
the Agenda 

Items not included on the Agenda at the start of the Board Meeting shall 
be handled in the following manner: 

 Any item for discussion or information only may be included on the 
Agenda with the consent of two-thirds of members present and 
eligible to vote.  

 Any item requiring action or policy decisions shall only be included on 
the Agenda with the unanimous consent of the whole Board present 
and eligible to vote.  

9.8 Segregating Matters of 
In-Camera Session 

The Agenda shall segregate matters to be considered in private sessions 
and no public disclosure of said private session matters shall be made.  

9.9 Agenda for Special 
Board Meetings 

The provisions of Section 9.5 apply, with necessary variations, to Special 
Meetings of the Board.  

9.10 Agenda for Meeting 
from which the public is 
excluded 

The provisions of Section 9.5 apply, with necessary variations, to the order 
of business for Meetings of committees that are not open to the public.  

9.11 Variation Variations in the Order of Business prescribed in 9.8, 9.9, 9.10 shall be 
permitted with the consent of the majority of Trustees as the case may be, 
who are present an eligible to vote, and such consent shall be ascertained 
without debate.  

9.12 Notice of Motion A Trustee may place a Notice of Motion, regarding any matter with respect 
to which the Trustee has a right to vote, upon the Agenda of the next 
regularly scheduled meeting. Such notice of motion:  

 Shall be made during the Approval of the Agenda and added as an 
Information Item of a regularly scheduled Board Meeting; 

 Shall be submitted in writing at the Regular Meeting of the Board and 
recorded in its minutes for consideration by the Board at its next 
Regular meeting; 

 Shall take the form “At the next regular scheduled meeting of the 
Board I shall move or cause to be moved that….”;   

 Shall not be subject of any debate or comment at the meeting at 
which it is introduced;  

68



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 14 of 19 
 

 Shall be accompanied by an explanatory notice prior to the draft 
Agenda being distributed; and 

 Shall, after its appearance on the Agenda, be taken as read unless any 
Trustee requests that it be read in full. 

 

10. MOTIONS 
 

10.1 Moved and Seconded  All motions at meetings must be moved and seconded before being 
accepted by the Chair. No motion shall be debated or put to a vote unless 
it has been recorded.  

10.2 Authority to Read Any member may request the motion under discussion to be read at any 
time in the course of the debate, provided that no such request shall be 
made so as to interrupt a member speaking to the question.  

10.3 Open and Close Debate 
on Main Motion 

The mover of a duly seconded motion will open and close debate on the 
motion.  The mover may open debate for a time limit of five minutes and 
close debate for a period of up to three minutes.  All other members may 
only speak once to the motion for a period of three minutes.  No member 
shall speak longer than three minutes to a motion without leave of the 
Chair.  This does not prohibit a member from raising a point of privilege, a 
point of order, or a point of clarification.  

10.4 Open and Close Debate 
on Amendments 

The same procedures as in By-law 10.3 will apply to amendments.  

10.5 Authority to Speak Any member desiring to speak shall indicate by up-raised hand and await 
recognition by the Chair. Speakers may speak when recognized by the 
Chair, and may not speak to the issue again until all other Trustees who 
wish to speak have been recognized by the Chair.  

10.6 Speakers’ List It is the responsibility of the Chair to maintain a speakers’ list.  

10.7 Code of Conduct Having been recognized to speak, a member shall respect the Board’s Code 
of Conduct.   

10.8 Interruption  No member shall be interrupted while speaking except to be called to 
order by a member on a matter of privilege or a point of order.  In such 
case, the member shall remain silent until the point of order has been 
decided by the Chair.  A member so interrupting shall speak to the point of 
order or in explanation only.  

10.9 Recognition of Motions When a question is under debate, the following motions shall be 
recognized in order of precedence: 

Motion Conditions 
To adjourn Not debatable 
Suspend the rules Not debatable 2/3 majority 
To lay on the table Not debatable 

To postpone to a later time (defer)  
To refer  
To amend  

To postpone indefinitely  
 

10.10 Order of Precedence  The following order of precedence may be addressed to the Chair and in 
so doing interrupt the Trustee on the floor: 

Motion Conditions 
Question of privilege Chair to determine 
Point of order Chair to rule 
Appeal ( a decision of Chair) Requires a seconder 
Objection to consideration Non-debatable, 2/3 required 

 

69



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 15 of 19 
 

10.11 Subdivision of Question When a question under consideration contains two or more distinct 
propositions, any particular propositions, upon the request of any 
member, may be considered and voted upon separately.  

10.12 Chair Taking Part in 
Debate 

Should the Chair elect to vacate the Chair to take part in any debate or 
discussion or for any other reason, the Chair shall call upon the Vice-Chair, 
or in the Vice-Chair’s absence, one of the Trustees, to assume the duties of 
the Chair until the Chair resumes it.  The Vice-Chair or any Trustee 
temporarily occupying the Chair, shall discharge all the duties and enjoy all 
the rights of the Chair during the ensuing proceedings only.  

10.13 Point of Order When the Chair is called upon to decide a point of order or practice, the 
Chair shall, before deciding, state the rule applicable to the case, without 
comment.  

10.14 Order of Questions All questions shall be put in the order in which they are moved, except the 
amendments shall be put before the main motion, the last amendment 
first.  

10.15 To Postpone A motion to postpone to a certain time or day, takes precedence over 
motions to committee or refer, to amend and to postpone indefinitely. 
Only the time to which the motion is postponed can be debated and is 
amendable (by altering the time).  

10.16 To Refer A motion to refer to a Standing Committee shall take precedence over a 
motion to refer to a Special Committee or to Administration. 

10.17 To Amend After a resolution is moved and seconded, a motion to amend may be 
made; a motion to amend the amendment may be made.  No further 
motion to amend shall be made until these have been decided 

10.18 To Lay on the  Table A motion to lay on the table is not debatable; and issued for the purpose 
of allowing the Board or Committee to deal with some other matter at the 
same meeting prior to dealing with the matter temporarily laid on the 
table.  A matter laid on the table may be dealt with at the same meeting 
or at a subsequent meeting. 

10.19 To Withdraw After a motion is read by the Chair, it shall be deemed to be in possession 
of the Board.  A motion may, by consensus, be withdrawn for the purpose 
of obtaining further relevant information and/or background to be 
included when this will serve to clarify the motion.  

10.20 To Reconsider The Board may set aside a vote taken on a motion in order to re-examine 
its action if a motion to reconsider is made at the same meeting as the 
original vote.  A Trustee who voted with the prevailing side must present 
the motion to reconsider.  The motion to reconsider will require an 
affirmative vote of the majority of the members present and eligible to 
vote.  The reconsideration may occur at the same meeting.  

10.21 To Postpone 
Indefinitely  

A motion to postpone indefinitely is to remove the main motion from the 
assembly’s consideration for the session without a direct vote on it.  The 
motion is debatable.  

10.22 Motion Lost A motion if lost, shall not again be entertained at the same meeting.  

10.23 To Rescind The Board may annul an action it has taken at a previous meeting by a 
motion to rescind the objectionable resolution, order or other proceeding; 
and this motion will require an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the 
members present who are eligible to vote on the matter to pass.  A 
motion to rescind any former action of the Board may be made by any 
member, provided that a written notice of intention to move the 
rescission shall have been given at a previous meeting of the Board.  Once 
a motion to rescind has been decided in the negative, no further motion to 

70



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 16 of 19 
 

rescind shall be entertained for the next twelve months without the 
unanimous consent of all Trustees present and eligible to vote on the 
matter.  
 
A motion to rescind is not in order if the previous resolution has been 
acted upon and cannot be reversed.  

10.24 Receipt of Reports To ‘receive‘ means that the Board receives a report or document without 
denoting agreement or disagreement.  

10.25 To Adjourn A motion to adjourn shall be in order except when a Trustee is speaking, 
or a vote is taken.  A motion to adjourn shall not be open to amendment 
or debate, but a motion to adjourn to a certain time may be amended and 
debated.  
 
After a motion to adjourn has been defeated, no second motion to the 
same effect shall be made until after some intermediate proceedings shall 
have been made.  

10.26 Recording of all 
Motions 

All motions, carried and defeated, must be recorded in the minutes.  

 

11. VOTING 
 

11.1 Voting Every Trustee present, excluding those that have declared an interest as 
required by the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act, may vote on all 
questions on which the Trustee is entitled to vote.  Although it is desirable 
that a Trustee should record a vote in each case, the Chair has no power 
to compel a vote.  

11.2 Right to Vote Only Trustees present or deemed to be present at the meeting when a 
vote is taken shall have the right to vote.  

11.3 Recounting Votes When a vote takes place on any motion, the votes of the Trustees may be 
recounted at the request of a Trustee.  A Trustee may, by request, have an 
item or items within any report, voted on separately.  

11.4 Affirmative Vote 
Required 

Except as otherwise provided in these By-laws, an affirmative vote shall 
require a majority of the votes of the Trustees who do vote (abstentions 
count as a non-vote).  

11.5 Minimum Number Any matter, on which there are fewer than two Trustees eligible to vote at 
a Committee meeting, shall stand referred to the Board.  

11.6 Methods of Voting Although the method requested by any person eligible to vote should be 
used to the extent practicable, the particular method of voting to be used 
to dispose of any matter shall be governed by the following rules: 

  By general (or unanimous) consent, in which the Chair exercising 
discretion, states that the motion will be adopted in the absence of 
objection;  

  By show of hands, in which each person eligible to vote raises their  
hand in response to the request of the Chair for the votes, in the 
affirmative and in the negative, as the case may be, until the votes are 
counted;  

  For recorded vote, each person eligible to vote stands in place in 
response to the requests of the Chair for the votes in the affirmative 
and in the negative, as the case may be, until the Chair has called the 
name of each person as voting, respectively, in the affirmative, or in 
the negative.   

71



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 17 of 19 
 

  All final motions under “Action Items” of Regular/Special Board 
Meetings as well as Regular/Special Board In-Camera Meetings require 
a recorded vote and will be included in the minutes of said meeting. 

 By ballot, if it specifically applies to the election of the Chair or Vice 
Chair, in which each person eligible to vote shall mark on a paper 
provided by the Secretary, the person’s choice from among the 
available alternatives, the papers being collected and counted 
immediately thereafter.   

11.7 Ruling of the Chair The ruling of the Chair shall be final, subject only to an appeal of the ruling 
to the Board or by a member, without debate. Such appeal shall be voted 
upon and a simple majority carries such a motion.  

11.8 Student Trustees Student Trustee votes shall not be counted in determining any Board 
decision.  

11.9 Right of the Chair to 
Vote 

The Chair may vote with the other members of the Board upon all 
motions, and any motion on which there is an equality of votes is lost.   

11.10 Vote Lost on Equality Any motion on which there is an equality of votes is lost. 

11.11 Declaration of Result The Chair shall declare the result of all votes.  After the Chair has put a 
question to vote, there shall be no further debate and no member shall 
walk across or out of the room. The decision of the Chair as to whether 
the question has been finally put shall be conclusive.  

12. DELEGATIONS AND SUBMISSIONS 
Policy I-6 

12.1 Purpose  A delegation wishing to make a presentation to the Board will submit the 
request in writing to the Secretary of the Board. 

12.2 Request to be Heard The request shall be received by the Secretary at least seven (7) days prior 
to the meeting of the Board. 

12.3 Nature of the 
presentation 

The request shall outline in some detail the nature of the presentation and 
indicate who the spokesperson will be for the group or organization. 

12.4 Brief A copy of the complete presentation must be provided to the Secretary of 
the Board at least four (4) business days (by 1:00 p.m.) prior to the Regular 
Board meeting. The presenter(s) will highlight the pertinent points in their 
presentation to the Board. 

12.5 Time Available – 
Delegations 

The delegation will be allowed a time of ten (10) minutes for their 
presentation. 

12.6 Commercial Enterprises 
Prohibited 

Commercial enterprises are prohibited from appearing before the Board 
as a delegation for purposes of promoting their products/services.  

12.7 Response from the 
Board 

The Board may make a decision on the presentation at the same meeting, 
refer the matter to a future meeting, request a staff report on the matter 
to be considered at a future meeting or receive as information.  Once the 
decision is made, the Secretary of the Board will communicate the Board's 
decision in writing to the spokesperson for the group or organization.  

 

13. OPEN QUESTION PERIOD 
 

13.1 Purpose  The purpose of the Open Question Period is to allow specific questions to 
the Board on any aspect of the Board’s public operations.  

13.2 Requirements Questions shall be submitted, in writing prior to the commencement of 
the meeting, along with the name, address and telephone number of the 
questioner.  

13.3 Validity of Questions The Chair will determine the validity of the questions. 

  

72



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 18 of 19 
 

13.4 Timing The open question period will last a maximum of ten (10) minutes, with 
each questioner allowed a maximum of two (2) minutes. 

13.5 Response The Chair will attempt to provide a response or direct the question to 
another Trustee or the Director of Education.  If no immediate response 
can be given, a response will be communicated to the questioner at the 
earliest possible date.  Copies of any written response to a question will be 
provided to Trustees and added to the minutes of a subsequent meeting. 

13.6 Out of Order Questions concerning the character or performance of named individuals 
or positions identified as such (students, teachers, staff, citizens or 
Trustees) shall be ruled out of order by the Chair.  

13.7 Employees of the Board Employees of the Board or representatives of employee groups shall not 
utilize the Open Question Period to express their views relative to their 
employment or professional interests.  

13.8 Questions/Petitions/ 
Enquiries 

All questions, petitions, enquiries or communications on any subject shall, 
upon presentation, be referred by the Chair to the appropriate meeting 
without a motion, unless otherwise determined by a majority of all 
members present. 

 

14. AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS 
 

14.1 Purpose  An individual Trustee may give notice of an amendment, alteration or 
addition to the by-laws.  Such notice will be referred to the Policy 
Committee for study and report. 

14.2 Review Process The By-Laws of the Halton Catholic District School Board shall be reviewed 
every four (4) years by the Board. 

14.3 Temporary Suspension 
of By-laws - Voting 

The Board may temporarily suspend a provision of these By-Laws by a 
two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the members of the Board, except where 
the provision is grounded in an obligation imposed by law.  

14.4 Timing on Agenda A temporary suspension of the By-Laws shall expire at the end of the 
meeting in which the By-Laws are suspended, unless the Board determines 
otherwise. 

14.5 Timing of Suspension No temporary suspension of the By-Laws shall extend beyond the current 
meeting of the Board.  

 

15. REPORTING BY WAY OF MINUTES 

15.1 Reporting Every Committee shall report after each of its meetings by way of the 
delivery of Minutes in either approved or unapproved form, segregating 
matters that have been considered public session from those that have 
been considered in private session and no public disclosure shall be made 
of these matters considered in private session.  

15.2 Duty of the Board The Board shall keep minutes. 

15.3 Content of Minutes Minutes of meetings of every committee and Board meeting shall contain 
the following information:  

 The name of the body meeting; 

 The date of the meeting; 

 Whether the meeting was a regular or special meeting. 

 The name of each Trustee who has disclosed any interest in any 
matter on the Agenda of such meeting, an identification of the matter 
in which the Trustee disclosed the interest and, if the public was not 
excluded from the meeting, the general nature of the interest 
disclosed.  

73



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 19 of 19 
 

 The names of the Trustees, senior staff, external consultants, Board 
auditors or Board solicitors who were present, noting the time of 
arrival and departure.  

 The resolutions and recommendations adopted by the Board. 

 The time of adjournment. 

 

16. DUTIES AND POWER OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

16.1 Duties of the Board As members of the Board, representing all Catholic School ratepayers in 
the Regional Municipality of Halton, Trustees recognize: 
 

That the duties of the Halton Catholic District School Board and its 
Trustees shall be the duties as defined in the Education Act and in the 
Regulations of Ontario;  the By-Laws, Policies and Procedures, Mission and 
Vision Statement of the Halton Catholic District School Board and the 
declaration of Office.  

16.2 Governing Power Members will exercise their power to govern only as Trustees of the 
corporate body, not as individuals.   

 

74



 

                        

 

75

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/III-05%20Employee%20Assault.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/III-15%20Workplace%20Violence.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/III-16%20Workplace%20Discrimination%20and%20Harassment.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h19
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m56
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/s09023


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

76



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

77



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

78



       Policy Committee Work Plan     
                                    2021-2022 

                                                                                         
                                                                                      

I-19 Occupational Health and Safety 

III-15 Workplace Violence 

III-16 Workplace Discrimination and Harassment 

I-06 Delegation to the Board  

I-46 Correspondence to the Board  

II-09 Opening and Closing Exercises 

IV-07 Alternative Arrangements for School Facilities    

IV-08 School Sites and Operating Budget 

Daily Teacher Plans

The School Day-Teaching Day-Elementary & Secondary

I-24 Fraud Management

II-23 Child Care Facilities 

I-36 Trustee Code of Conduct  

II-44 Student Mental Health and Well-Being 

I-07 Protection of Privacy 

II-50 Prior Learning Assessment and Recognition (PLAR) for Day 
School Students 

II-46 Assessment and Evaluation 

V-15 Environmental Stewardship 

I-43 Use of Technology and Digital Citizenship 

V-03 Photography, Advertising and Sales Representatives 

V-17 Request for Promotion and Distribution of Program/Activity 
Related to Materials through Board Schools 

V-04 School Fundraising Activities 

IV-06 School Sites and Facilities Criteria 

79



       Policy Committee Work Plan     
                                    2021-2022 

                                                                                         
                                                                                      

II-39 Progressive Discipline and Safety in Schools 

I-14 Smoking/Vaping Ban 

II- 28 Alcohol, Tobacco/Vaping and Drug Education and Abuse in 
Schools 

II-20 Child Abuse and Protection of Students 

II-10 Releasing Pupils from School 

I-44 Strategic Planning Process 

II-37 Volunteers in Catholic Schools 

II-15 International Languages Elementary Program 

I-30 Video Surveillance  

II-49 English as a Second Language & English Literacy Development 
Programs and Services 

II-51 Optional French Programming (French Immersion and Extended 
French) 

I-45 Transparency and Accountability in Executive Compensation 

V-01 Use of School Grounds and Community Use of School facilities 

V-09 Public Concerns Complaints Process 

V-18 Community Engagement and Public Consultation 

80



81


	Agenda
	2.2 June 8, 2021 Minutes.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 4.1 Policy I-19 Occupational Health and Safety.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 I-19 Occupational Health and Safety (RL).pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.2 4.2  Policy III-15 Workplace Violence.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.2 III-15 Workplace Violence .pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.3 4.3 Policy III-16 Workplace Discrimination and Harassment.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.3 III-16 Workplace Discrimination and Harassment.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.4 4.4 Policy I- 06 Delegaion to the Board.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.4 I-06 Delegation to the Board.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.5 Policy I-46 Correspondence to the Board of Trustees - Stakeholder Feedback.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.5 I-46 Draft New Policy - Correspondence to the Board.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.6 Action Report II-09.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.6 II-09 Opening and Closing Exercises  .pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.7 4.7 Rescind Action Report IV-07 Alternative Arrangements for School Facilities.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.7 Rescind Policy IV-07 Alternative Arrangements for School Facilities.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.8 4.8 Rescind Action Report IV-08 School Sites and Operating Budget.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.8 Rescind Policy IV-08 School Sites and Operating Budget.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.9 4.9 HCDSB Procedural By-laws.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.9 Procedural By-Laws - Sept 2021.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.1 VI-04 Complaints Resolution Process - Workplace Discrimination Harassment Violence (RL) (002).pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.2 Policy Committee Work Plan 2021-2022.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.3 2021-2022 Policy Working Group.pdf
	Back to Agenda


